REVISED SITE SURVEY SUMMARY SHEET
DERP-FUDS SITE No. JOSCAT0Q5600
BENICIA ARSENAL,

SITE NAME: Benicia Arsenal. The site was also known as Benicia Arsenal Expansion
Project; Benicia Arsenal Expansion, Railroad Car Holding Yard Project, Benicia Arsenal
Reservation; Benicia Arsenal Wharf, Arsenal Reservation; Benicia Ordnance Report;
Benicia Arsenal Military Reservation; Benicia Barracks; and "The Original Garrision”,
Benicia Arsenal, Solanc County, California.

LOCATION: San Francisco Bay area, Solano County, approximately one mile east of
the City of Benicia and 25 miles northeast of San Francisco, California, Map 1.

SITE HISTORY: Benicia Arsenal was declared excess by DOD and was reported to
the General Services Administration on January 11, 1963. On February 26, 1965, 1.33
public domain acres were reassigned to Benicia Arsenal Cemetery. The total property
acres acquired were disposed of as follows: from 1945 to 1960, lease terminated for
575.45 acres; on January 11, 1962, 360.78 public domain/licensefeasement/lease
acres reporied excess; and, GSA quitciaim deed to the City of Benicia (Surplus
Property Authority) 5.03 and 1,785.45 fee acres on March 12, 1964 and February 20,
1968, respectively.

Sacramento District has no record of the actual terminated lease from the City of
Benecia granting use of the 574.45 acres to the Army. The Quitclaim Deed dated
February 20, 1965 is not available for review; it was not found in the Sacramento
District files, the GSA files, or through a title company search. However, the Disposal
Report to GSA (SF-118), copy of which is on file at Sacramento District. The arsenal
remained vacant from 1265 to 1975. Subsequent to 1875, the City of Benecia entered
into several property arrangements with commercial industry and commercial
developers. The site is currently a combination of residential , light to heavy
industrial/commercial activities, and warghousing.

Referencing the original INPR (dated September1990), the site doss not contain any
known underground storage tanks or landfilis. The original INPR also states that "State
and local environmental agencies were contacted” and it is inferred that the Regional
Water Quality Control Board offered a clean groundwater contamination report for the
site, though no test results or certification are included in the INPR file. The resulting
original INPR (September 1980) recommended a NOFA.

Subsequently, in correspondence and interviews, attorney Mark Pollock related that in
April, 1984, his client, an individual property ewner within the original arsenat
boundaries hired a private firm, Applied Geostiences, to conduct a preliminary site
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investigation on and arcund his property. Their report prompled testing which was
performed in order {o sscure additional financing for development of the property. Ina
letier dated 26 August, 1994, Mr. Pollock refers 1o a conversation with USACOE project
manager Mike Metro wherein he related the results of the testing. Subsequert to this
letter, Mr. Pollock forwarded ninetesn pages copled from the report produced by
Applied Geosciences. Most of these pages duplicated information coilectad in the
archives search conducted by USACOE, Huntsville. According to Mr. Pollock, tests
suggest that there is a plume of TCE on the property. In & conversation on 29 August,
1994, Wir. Pollock also indicated he believes thers is sxdensive elemental lead in the
soil approximately 50-100 feet southwest of the plume and unrelated to it. He also
stated that there had been a firing range located on that sits. Mr. Pollock's records
show that the area of the FUDS in question has not been developed since the
Department of Defense ended their use of the site.

SITE VISIT: A site visit was conducted on July 25, 1890. Mr. Douglas Perreira and Mr.
Paul Robinson, Earth Technology, visited the Benicia Arsenal. They met with 3r. Don
Curtis, Director of Public Works for the City of Benicia, Mr. Curlis presented a brief
history of the site and pointed out curent activities. Their site visit was not specific to
any particular portion of the nearly 3,000 acres of former Arsenal property, but was
intendad to provide an overview for the entire site.

A sacond site visit was conducted by USACOE Huntsville Division archives and
records search team members during the period of 30 November to 2 Decamber, 1993.
Their search was primarily io determine the existences of ordnance or chemical warfare
material still on the site.

On Seplember 13, 1994, Nikki Holmes and Dennis Potter of USACOE met Mr. Pollock
and Mr. Pat McGreal, Mr. Pollock's private investigator, at the Benicia City Hall. The
group proceeded to the site in question. Thers, they were joined by the property
owner, Mr. Gordon Potter. The purpose of the meeting was fo visually inspect all
suspect areas, define a general area perimeter, and note all buildings, industry, and
aclivities on surrounding properties,

The suspect area for TCE is the precise location of building 57A, an annex constructed
between Arsenal buiidings, Nos. 56 and 57, The approximate date of construction was
1944, An inspection was made of the annex,

Mr. Potter has had a private firm trench and sample inside building 57A. The trenching
follows the drain inlets along lines to a sump at the inside south end of the building.
The sump is approximately six feet deep with inside dimensions of approximately six
feet by twelve fest. Black discoloration along the bottom two feet of the interior walls
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was noted. Sump construction is concrete with walls approximatsly six inches thick.
Backfilled boring holes were aiso observed along trenching and sump, 2s well as on
the immediate south, outside of the annex building, as well as one approximately 30
feet north {upgradient) of the annex. The soil from trenching operations is piled onto
the undisturbed portions of the cement floor inside the annex building. Currently, a fan
is being used to aerate the soll in hopes of volatilizing contaminants.

Mr. Potter and Mr. Pollock also led the group into the basement of puilding 57, where
early Arsenal test firing ranges are slill present. These consist of several long
chambers of concrets, each with sand at the far end o dampen ricocheting
ammunition. These chambers have apparently not been used since DOD activities,
The sand in each chamber is filled with spent ammunition. A number of these were
collected and appear to bs quite old. Based upon available historical documents and
visual verification, Building 57 was used by DoD for smeall arms breakdown and
cleaning, and subsequent similar use by non-DoD owners is not apparent.

Following the site visit, Mr. Pollock forwarded sampling resulls of the TCE to the offices
of USACOE, Sacramento District. These reporis are included in the Sacramento
District file. [t should be noted that the dates of sampling are 16 May and 2 June 1994,
The background (upgradient) semple was taken at a depth of only two feet and could
be less than conclusive in defining the upgradient extent of an existing plume.

CATEGORY OF HAZA

RD: HTRW, OE.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

HIRW: This project proposes an in-depth records and archive search o correlate the
originat Arsenal buildings with their current site locations. Specifically, existence and
locations should be verified for motor pool, bregkdown area {for small arms), firing
range, and storm drain and sewer systems. For sform and sewer systems,
construction practices should be researched as well. Record search for contaminant
release reports should be conducted. Sampling to define the contaminant plums at the
suspected locations will be initlated only if the record search indicates that the cause of
the release to bs the result of past Department of Defense activities. An interim action
project to remove and dispose of the soil in Building 57A should also be implemented i
the record search indicates that the TCE contamination is the result of past Department
of Defense activities. Becauss the old rounds in the firing range are presumed to be
elemental lead, removal of the sand in the chambers is also proposed.

OE: Project should be initiated in accordance with recent site developmenis {explosive
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projectiles found) and based on the recommendations from the archives saarch feport
completed by COE, Huntsville Division. The archive search report addresses fwo
areas of concern: the weapon test site and the munitions storags area. A RAC has
been prepared based on the projectiles found near the waapon test area. The RAC
was scored at 1. - '

1. Harding Lawson Assoclates; Assessment of Lead Contamination Powder Magazine
1 Site, May 12, 1988.

Harding Lawson Associates; Rejnediation of Lead-Contaminated Soil Powder
aazing 1 Site; January 14, 1988,

3. Bruegmann, Robert; Benicia: P
History; Schibners; 1880.

4, Unknown; The Beni

5. Applied Geosciences; Prelimi
selected pages only; 1994,

8. American Environmental Testing Laboratories (AETL): Apaiviical Results:
Number 4116; 1994,

7. Archive Search Report; St Louis District (prepared for Huntsville Division); 1994.




£ DEFENSE ENVIRONMENTAL RESTORATION FROGRAM
FORMERLY USED DEFENSE SITES
FINDINGS AND DETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY

BENICIA ARSENAL, CALIFORNIA RN
STTE NO. J09CA075600

FIND 04

1. From 1849 to 1958, the United States acquired 1,790.48 fee acres, 351.12 public
domain acres, 6.40 license acres, 4.16 easement acres, and 575.88 lease acres for the
Benicia Arsenal (2,728.04 total acres).

2. From 1849 to 1960, the U.S. Department of the Army used the site as a principal
depot for ordnance storage and issuance (ammunition, small arms parts, and military
supplies) and the manufacture and testing of small arms, mobile and seacoast artillery
targets. During DOD ownership of the property, more than 350 structures were built, of
which approximately 40% were temporary structures. The site had a water pumping and
distributing system; sewer and drainage system; electric power and distributing system; and a
telephone and fire alarm system. The Army abandoned the site after 1960. The site was
exclusively under the jurisdiction of DOD and owned by the United States.

3. On January 11, 1962, Benicia Arsenal was declared excess by DOD and was reported
to the General Services Administration. On February 26, 1965, 1.33 acres of public domain
property was reassigned to Benicia Arsenal Cemetery. The total property acres acquired
were disposed of as follows (it appears that there were no restoration nor recapture
provisions): from 1945 to 1960, lease terminated for 575.45 acres; on Janvary 11, 1962,
360.78 public domain/license/easement/lease acres reported excess; and, GSA quitclaim deed
to the City of Benicia (Surplus Property Authority) 5.03 and 1,785.45 fee acres on March
12, 1964 and February 20, 1965, respectively. The arsenal remained vacant from 1965 to
1975. In 1975, the City of Benicia leased the arsenal property (six historic buildings were
withheld for public use) to Benicia Industries, Inc., a private land development firm. The six
city maintained DOD built structures are the Clocktower, Commandants House, Camel Bamns
{2}, engine house, and an ammunition storage bunker, Benicia Industries currently maintains
twenty-twe DOD built structures, The structures are in fair to good condition. All of the
other DOD built structures were either destroyed by several fires in 1922 and 1983, or were
tom down. The site is currently used for residential housing, ]iggt t0 heavy industry,
warehousing, and as a port. : ’

P:R0650\000513-0813.DF 5



DETERMINATTION

Based on the foregoing findings of fact, the site has been
determined to have been formerly used by DOD. There is no
evidence of unsafe conditions resulting from DOD use.

Therefore, it is determined that an envirommental restoration
project is not an appropriate undertaking within the purview of
the Defense Environmental Restoration Program, established under
10 U.8.C. 2701 et seq., for the reasons stated above.




Pt

Gy e

|

[ RS

! {Senweiton

T T et

v ."ﬁ“eii:?if i Shapot

A
X " hudf
- &
o

2,

oA .,’
iR Ry

@

Noe s A

Hrd@, aomcan 3 AL

rifaly fgtand g My
ry 7 b ,..»'({" g )

5 e

Winta Juaelwr

- ,'/,.‘. “:‘

) Figure 1

Locaﬁcn Map
Benicia Arsenal

Source: Base map from U.S.G.S.
San Francisco Quad

Site No, JOICAO075600

Iy ’-.‘. .
.
" tlodia tnglirs S\ -/ R T .
-._‘1{ ° 5, { o Ty g
AN $s g (7%, TR R0
Lo o~ ¢~ wihgetir-tiland A ) 2
*RANCISCO BAY AR - S ¥
NAVALISHIPYARD gt L bt S s
. i * Ratro towe oA Bnag Itand
"-g»’:s o mg"ﬁ R Coipm t e blend o
. TATION C s Mo TE | B ey, fareRd,
P g L A R g AL T Ry ﬂwr ’
e Chu;? A RED s o 5:;::‘\_‘____.._“53!!

Ertr
heack ALTesT= ---':r.-

W_,,.—:"L
—zamTan

1

RS
\"Y‘};‘.“'@-_\E\“*._,,
¢ R

e

oy

North
250,000




